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          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I call the

          3  Subcommittee on Zoning and Franchises to order.

          4                 Joining me this morning are my

          5  colleagues, Council Member Mike McMahon, Melinda

          6  Katz and Maria Baez.

          7                 We have several items on the agenda.

          8  First one up is Land Use number 34. C020654 ZMX. An

          9  application by Graham for an amendment of the zoning

         10  map, establishing within existing R5 district, a

         11  C2-1 district, bounded by White Plains Road and

         12  other streets.

         13                 We have Sol Korman representing the

         14  applicant.

         15                 MR. KORMAN: Good morning, Chairman

         16  Avella, and members of the Council.

         17                 My name is Sol Korman. I represent

         18  the Agusta Group who represents the applicant, Mr.

         19  Jocques Graham, on this application.

         20                 This is an application to extend an

         21  existing commercial overlay of approximately 140 --

         22  well, not approximately, 140 feet from the existing

         23  overlay which is 150 feet. It is on White Plains

         24  Road in the Bronx, a very wide 100 foot wide street,

         25  100 feet from Bruckner Boulevard, which is I believe
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          2  175 foot wide, a very commercial area.

          3                 The applicant owns all the property

          4  involved in this extension of the commercial

          5  overlay, and intends to build a restaurant there. He

          6  is currently in negotiations for an IHOP restaurant.

          7  It is the intention not to build a fastfood

          8  restaurant, but something of this nature, hopefully

          9  an IHOP.

         10                 Basically, it's a very

         11  straightforward application. There's not much to add

         12  to that, the area, I'd like to repeat, is very

         13  commercial. In fact, he's only one zoning right away

         14  from Bruckner Boulevard, which contains an existing

         15  commercial use, Sleepys, I believe, and that's about

         16  it.

         17                 We see unanimous approval at the

         18  community board, the Borough President approved it,

         19  and City Planning obviously approved it, and we're

         20  here to get your approval.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I might add that

         22  the application is within Council Member Palma's

         23  district, and she is in approval of the project.

         24                 The community board did approve with

         25  conditions. Do you have some comments on the
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          2  conditions?

          3                 MR. KORMAN: I'm not too sure I recall

          4  that.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Staff will give

          6  it to you.

          7                 MR. KORMAN: Whatever it is, I'm sure

          8  we will comply, but I just -- yes, the latest

          9  drawing I believe responds to this.

         10                 Also, there were recommendations by

         11  the City Planning Commission for more landscaping

         12  and a fence. All of this was done in a revised

         13  drawing, which I do have, by the way. It's a small

         14  one, but I'd be glad to pass it around.

         15                 Yes, to answer your question, we did

         16  modify the proposed site plan to provide two means

         17  of egress.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We've also been

         19  joined by Council Member Al Vann.

         20                 Any questions from Committee members?

         21                 That's it.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 MR. KORMAN: Thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Unless there's

         25  somebody else signed up to speak on this item, I
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          2  will close the public hearing.

          3                 Okay, we'll move on to the next item.

          4                 Land Use Numbers 81, 82 and 83. They

          5  are all related. N030228 ZRY, 3030229 ZSM; and

          6  C030230 PPM.

          7                 Application by Columbia University,

          8  and EDC, for an amendment of the zoning resolution,

          9  to modify provision of Section 74-48 concerning

         10  height and set back regulations for scientific

         11  research and development facilities in C6 districts.

         12                 This item was laid over from our last

         13  meeting on April 19th.

         14                 We have a full panel here. Please

         15  introduce yourselves for the record and being.

         16                 MR. ADASKO: I'm Hardy Adasko, Senior

         17  Vice President of the Economic Development

         18  Corporation.

         19                 Kevin Kirby, I'm the Chief Operating

         20  Officer of the University Medical Center.

         21                 MR. LEVIN: Raymond Levin with Wachtel

         22  and Masyr, Land Use Counsel to Columbia University.

         23                 MR. BOND: Max Bond. Partner of Davis

         24  Brody Bond, the architects for the project.

         25                 MR. ADASKO: Speaking on behalf of the
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          2  Economic Development Corporation, which is a

          3  co-applicant on this project, biotech is a very

          4  important industry to New York City. We think it has

          5  the potential to grow and it's an important part of

          6  our economic development strategy.

          7                 We have tremendous resources in

          8  academic medicine, and in research universities, and

          9  many of those academics are also entrepreneurial,

         10  and take their research findings and tried to build

         11  businesses from them, and we would like to capture

         12  that and retain that entrepreneurial spirit and the

         13  jobs that eventually come from it within the City.

         14                 The zoning is relatively stringent

         15  on, not on the academic or on the research part, but

         16  on the transition to development and to small

         17  manufacturing and so there is a special permit

         18  necessary for each of these projects as a research

         19  and development special permit.

         20                 Some years ago Columbia took the

         21  first initiative in developing an incubator facility

         22  near their medical campus, and that project is

         23  successful.

         24                 We've since had another project

         25  approved and another couple under construction,
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          2  which do not have the zoning problem, but this is

          3  the one that has been successful, and it's something

          4  to build upon, and we're very supportive of building

          5  upon that experience and strength to try and grow

          6  this industry within the City.

          7                 MR. KIRBY: The Columbia University

          8  Medical Center has five schools. Together they

          9  comprise half the University, both in terms of a

         10  budget and in terms of faculty.

         11                 I'm here today to talk about the

         12  autobahn science and technology park. This comprises

         13  five buildings when it will be fully built out.

         14  Three are built today, the first of the autobahn

         15  buildings Hardy mentioned, which is a commercial

         16  biotech. The second and the third buildings, which

         17  are also complete are university research buildings.

         18                 Today we have three zoning and Land

         19  Use actions before you and we'll go over those in a

         20  few minutes with you.

         21                 The fourth of the autobahn building

         22  is going to be a partner of autobahn 1. Autobahn 1

         23  was built in 1996. It's the only commercial biotech

         24  incubator in the City. It's very important to the

         25  University. It's important in how we recruit
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          2  faculty, it's a big attraction for high-quality

          3  faculty, and it also allows us to take our ideas on

          4  intellectual property and translate them much faster

          5  into real therapies for the public.

          6                 It's all small businesses in there,

          7  so these are often companies that start off with

          8  just two, three, half a dozen people. We've had 40

          9  tenants in the seven years that it's opened. We

         10  currently have 22 tenants, biotechnology tenants,

         11  and we have four retail tenants.

         12                 It's currently a hundred percent

         13  full, and we have companies continuously knocking at

         14  our door looking for space.

         15                 It has created 300 jobs in the

         16  building, and we've had many successful companies

         17  merge out of there, including two companies that

         18  were started by Nobel laureates, and we've produced

         19  products for such items as artificial skin and

         20  memory enhancement.

         21                 Part of our problem is that as

         22  companies become successful, they leave New York

         23  City. We can't offer them additional space, and the

         24  proposal before you today is to expand and build the

         25  fourth of the Autobahn buildings which will be
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          2  physically mated to the first one, creating a

          3  350,000 square foot building in total.

          4                 We have appeared before the community

          5  board twice in public hearings, had numerous

          6  interactions with them, we've made a number of

          7  commitments and changes to our proposal, based on

          8  their actions. This proposal has been approved by

          9  the Borough President, with the conditions of the

         10  community board attached, and we would be pleased to

         11  answer your questions about the project.

         12                 MR. LEVIN: Just briefly, the actions

         13  before the Council are removing of a restriction on

         14  development of this site which was placed in 1990

         15  when the property was leased to Columbia and the

         16  first building was authorized, the Council at that

         17  time. Actually it was the Board of Estimate, and

         18  wanted --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Can I ask you to

         20  speak up?

         21                 MR. LEVIN: Sure.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Maybe it's just

         23  me, I apologize. Mr. Chair, I'm having trouble

         24  hearing the witnesses.

         25                 MR. LEVIN: In 1990 a restriction was
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          2  placed on this site when it was leased to Columbia.

          3  Approval of the first building, Autobahn 1, included

          4  a condition that Autobahn 2, or as it's called now,

          5  Autobahn 4 would come back for consideration before

          6  it went forward, and that's why we're here.

          7                 The second item on the calendar is a

          8  text change to allow height and setback to be waived

          9  for these kinds of research facilities.

         10                 Given the large amount of air

         11  conditioning, ventilation, fume hoods and other

         12  mechanical equipment, the core of these buildings is

         13  large, much larger than a normal building, and

         14  setting back at the 15 foot level, especially on a

         15  small site such as this creates a dis-economies in

         16  being able to construct this building.

         17                 And the third item is the special

         18  permit to allow commercial biotech building be built

         19  here.

         20                 So, those are the three items that

         21  are before the Council.

         22                 MR. BOND: I think it's all been said.

         23  I'd be pleased to answer questions.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We've also been

         25  joined by Council Member Christine Quinn, who I
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          2  guess has just stepped out, and Council Member

          3  Miguel Martinez, whose district this lies in.

          4                 Council Member, do you have a

          5  question or a comment?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you,

          7  Mr. Chair.

          8                 I, first of all, want to thank the

          9  Land Use staff for their help in getting some of the

         10  questions addressed, and some of the issues and

         11  concerns that were brought up at the community board

         12  level.

         13                 I would say that the University has

         14  made a good effort attempt to address the issues

         15  that were brought up at the time when Autobahn 1 was

         16  first developed in 1990, when back then Council

         17  Member Stanley Michels worked with the community

         18  board, and then Borough President Ruth Messinger, in

         19  ensuring that the development of the biotech in the

         20  area would not only be an economic engine in the

         21  community, but it would also include the community

         22  at large, the Northern Manhattan community.

         23                 As such, the University did start a

         24  scholarship in which now we're working to ensure

         25  that more the constituency of Northern Manhattan
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          2  take advantage of this internship, scholarship at

          3  CUNY.

          4                 At the same time, on the issue of

          5  ensuring that more jobs are made available to the

          6  community, long term and short term, short term in

          7  the construction stage, long term and including in

          8  the biotech research, lab technician field, more

          9  members of our community. Columbia has also made

         10  that commitment, and has put it in writing, the

         11  commitments made, and new commitments that were

         12  generated as the discussion of the development of

         13  Autobahn 4. The issues over the environmental

         14  impact, as well, were addressed by Columbia, and

         15  it's also in writing in which I just got by Mr.

         16  Kirby.

         17                 Thank you for making sure I got that

         18  the next day.

         19                 I would say that definitely, yes,

         20  this is an important economic development for our

         21  community. But at the same time, I just want to

         22  continue to emphasize that, you know, Columbia has

         23  made commitment, but not only do we just want

         24  commitment, we also want Columbia to be a part of

         25  ensuring that they are executed and that we move
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          2  forward in building our relationship with the

          3  community.

          4                 And the Northern Manhattan Community,

          5  along with the entire Borough of Manhattan, and the

          6  new development that would take place in

          7  Manhattanville, we see it as one. We don't see two

          8  separate campuses.

          9                 I think that the health and science

         10  campuses, which is at the Washington Heights

         11  community, is very much a part of the campus on 116

         12  and the development that's going to take place in

         13  Manhattanville. So, it's very important that the

         14  community of Northern Manhattan is not just seen as

         15  the little island where biotech is taking place, and

         16  that all the economic development, and the economic

         17  engine and potential that Columbia has in terms of

         18  contracting with local merchants, is also an

         19  important part of the commitment that Columbia has

         20  made in terms of contracting locally.

         21                 So, Mr. Chair, I want to recommend

         22  that you and the Committee approve this ULURP.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you,

         25  Council member.
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          2                 Any questions from Committee members.

          3                 Council Member Katz.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Good morning,

          5  gentlemen.

          6                 I'm curious on a few issues. I want

          7  to thank you for working so closely with Council

          8  Member Martinez. It does make it easier. Once we get

          9  to this stage that the Council member has been dealt

         10  with and worked with, and I'm sure that Columbia

         11  will work on keeping up with their commitments that

         12  they've made to the Council member.

         13                 But I did have a few questions on

         14  community board review.

         15                 I'm looking at the City Planning

         16  Commission report, and apparently the community

         17  boards were very diverse in their opinions of this.

         18  And I guess, number one, I'd like to know your

         19  perception of why.

         20                 And, again, for the other Committee

         21  members, this Committee has had a very long history

         22  of working with Columbia University, so I'm just

         23  curious as to why you believe there is such a

         24  diverse opinion on community boards.

         25                 Also, apparently one of the community
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          2  boards at least took the position that they didn't

          3  get the information in time. So, can you just

          4  discuss that?

          5                 MR. ADASKO: Okay. First of all, we're

          6  only talking about the text change which allows the

          7  height and set back waiver, because that was a

          8  Citywide text change, it was referred to all

          9  community boards that had C 6 districts.

         10                 As it turns out, given the

         11  restrictions in the biotech special permit, which

         12  you had to be a full block or 40,000 square feet, as

         13  it turns out there are no other sites in the City

         14  that would meet those criteria, but this one.

         15                 We did offer every community board

         16  that had C 6 to come and make a presentation, so

         17  everybody was aware of it, because we called them

         18  all.

         19                 I don't know what information that

         20  particular community board didn't think they had. I

         21  believe their meeting didn't jive with their

         22  schedule.

         23                 In terms of the community boards, I

         24  think the problem was difficulty in understanding

         25  what we were trying to do, because there was a
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          2  special permit and this was a change within a

          3  special permit, but it didn't relate to a project

          4  within their neighborhood.

          5                 So, it was somehow difficult to

          6  communicate what this really was. So, in Community

          7  Board 1, down in this area, where people had talked

          8  about biotechnology as a potential, and they

          9  actually supported it, at first they didn't

         10  understand how limited it was and then they

         11  ultimately decided that rather than force people to

         12  go to the Board of Standards, because that would

         13  have been the fallback, if you couldn't do it all

         14  within one form of City Planning with this height

         15  and set back waiver, you could have been forced to

         16  go to the Board of Standards. So, they went along

         17  with it.

         18                 Community Board 8, I think Board 8

         19  was a close vote against it because they didn't want

         20  to see any other big development. I believe it was

         21  Board 8 that had just had a to do with

         22  Sloan-Kettering, and actually I think their vote was

         23  a wider margin. And therefore, just lumped this into

         24  a continuation of that.

         25                 And each Board had a different
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          2  reason, but we offered them all a presentation. Most

          3  of the community boards that it was sent to, I

          4  believe eight out of the 12 didn't even take it up.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I guess that

          6  brings it to the second issue which is biotech.

          7                 As some of you may know, about a year

          8  and a half, two years ago, we worked very closely

          9  with the Administration on the biotech industry, and

         10  also with the Partnership in trying to get more

         11  biotech industries into the City of New York. And

         12  that, in those discussions, what we realized is,

         13  true or not, the sense was that biotech needed more

         14  flat wide, you know, research areas, which I guess

         15  by the nodding of your head I actually learned

         16  something.

         17                 And that was one of the problems that

         18  we were having in bringing that industry into the

         19  City and in Long Island, or Long Island apparently

         20  had that locked up.

         21                 So, the question I really have for

         22  you is exactly what is going to be happening in

         23  these offices that now are considered quote/unquote

         24  biotech, and what would make that distinctive from

         25  the flat long laboratories I was told that you need,
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          2  or just plain administrative offices?

          3                 And if you could do it quickly? I

          4  know that I am taking up the Committee's time, and I

          5  would appreciate it.

          6                 MR. KIRBY: All biotech buildings that

          7  are built today have at least floor plates of 30,000

          8  square feet. What this combined Autobahn 1 and 4

          9  will create on the lower floor is floor plates that

         10  are at least 30,000 square feet. But that in and of

         11  itself isn't sufficient.

         12                 We're out currently seeking a

         13  developer in conjunction with EDC, who will actually

         14  build the project, and we have been talking to large

         15  tenants, big biotech tenants, commercial tenants,

         16  who would be an anchor tenant in the building,

         17  either up here in Washington Heights, or elsewhere

         18  in the City.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Now, the second

         20  part of the question is then exactly what is going

         21  on here? So this will be the flat large laboratories

         22  that we're discussing that one is necessary in order

         23  to have a biotech laboratory; is this going to be

         24  the only one on campus?

         25                 MR. KIRBY: No. We have other
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          2  buildings in the Autobahn Park, which are larger

          3  floor plates, more rectangular kinds of floor

          4  plates. And this particular building on the lower

          5  floors we will get those large floor plates that we

          6  need.  On the upper floors, we'll still be able to

          7  have the incubator --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right. But the

          9  biotech scientific research that is going to be

         10  happening, and the laboratories that are going to be

         11  working, are only going to be in this area? First

         12  Autobahn in this area that we're doing today? Or do

         13  you plan on coming back in the future for other

         14  laboratories? I'm just curious.

         15                 MR. KIRBY: In Washington Heights,

         16  this is the only biotech, commercial biotech

         17  contemplated. There may be additional commercial

         18  biotech in Manhattanville.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay, thank you

         20  very much.

         21                 I understand that you will be coming

         22  back from Manhattanville, that in Washington

         23  Heights, this will be the only one in that area, and

         24  it's the only one on the campus now I assume. Even

         25  though the other spaces are large enough.
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          2                 Thank you very much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any other

          4  questions from members?

          5                 Thank you, gentlemen.

          6                 We have one person signed up to speak

          7  on this item, Dale Powell, from the Washington

          8  Heights community.

          9                 First of all, are you in favor or in

         10  opposition? Because usually you fill this out.

         11                 MS. POWELL: Thank you. I'm in favor,

         12  but I'm not in favor in the way it's been presented.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay.

         14                 MS. POWELL:

         15                 I'm in favor of having the autobahn

         16  construction. I'm sorry to see the community was not

         17  able to attend today, that's why I'm glad I am here.

         18                 The Washington Heights community are

         19  all working class people. They were notified on the

         20  twilight hour, which was yesterday, most of the

         21  community, and they could not take off from their

         22  jobs to be at this hearing.

         23                 This is a misrepresentation of the

         24  community's concerns. The community is concerned

         25  about jobs, the community is concerned about the
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          2  development itself. I personally am concerned

          3  because I own a brownstone directly across the

          4  street from where this development is going to be,

          5  the type of hardship it's going to place on us as a

          6  community, because as you've heard them say, there's

          7  been many other autobahn projects that have been

          8  done, and we've been at a hardship for quite awhile.

          9  There's many, many people that have suffered

         10  respiratory illnesses.

         11                 I would like there to be a hearing

         12  where you could hear the grassroots people who

         13  unfortunately could not be here today. Basically

         14  that sums it up.

         15                 We have had many meetings with

         16  District Planning Board 12. At that time, many, many

         17  hundreds of Washington Heights community persons

         18  were at those meetings. They all did not have the

         19  same interests that I have. They had interests in

         20  terms of getting jobs in the community, they had

         21  interests in how it has affected their health. I'm

         22  not speaking on the Washington Heights 165th Street,

         23  166th Street, we've had people come as far as

         24  Inwood, which is at least 20 blocks away, and we've

         25  had people come as far as 145th Street. So, both
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          2  sides are very concerned as to this development.

          3                 We would really appreciate it if this

          4  Committee would take another look at the project

          5  itself and make an opportunity to hear from the

          6  people of that community. And I thank you for the

          7  time.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

          9                 I would just mention that that's why

         10  we do take into account, you know, the

         11  recommendations of the community board, and that's

         12  an opportunity for the local residents to testify.

         13                 I'm sorry to hear that you didn't

         14  know about this hearing, because these hearings are

         15  scheduled way in advance. This is part of the normal

         16  process.

         17                 And we do rely on the community board

         18  to let the members or the people from the community

         19  who are in opposition know about what the schedule

         20  is, and what the process is, so that you and your

         21  neighbors can come down and directly testify as

         22  well.

         23                 MS. POWELL: Well, personally, I found

         24  out about this at 9:00 last night when I came in

         25  from work. I called several other people in the
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          2  community, they were not aware of it at all. And to

          3  be quite honest, I then called a few people on the

          4  Planning Board, and they, themselves, were not aware

          5  of this. So, that's why I say this is not a

          6  representation of the Washington Heights community.

          7  There are just too many people that aren't aware of

          8  it.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         10  Martinez has a question, if you'll stay there for a

         11  second.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you,

         13  Ms. Powell --

         14                 MS. POWELL: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:-- For being

         16  here.

         17                 As you're aware, and you've

         18  mentioned, there have been several community board

         19  hearings on this issue.

         20                 MS. POWELL: Correct.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: And in fact,

         22  at City Planning also, there were five in favor of

         23  this project, none opposed. And as a matter of fact,

         24  one of the reasons why originally this Committee did

         25  not vote when it would schedule and it was laid over
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          2  for today, what's to allow more discussion on this

          3  issue. And as a matter of fact, as I mentioned

          4  earlier, the last communication that we received

          5  from Columbia addressing the particular issue that

          6  you brought up, in terms of you being a neighbor,

          7  and a resident right across the street from the

          8  development, on the issue of the environmental

          9  impact of, the University has committed, not only to

         10  continue for them themselves to monitor the

         11  hazardous waste that are going to be coming out of

         12  the building, they're going to be responsible for

         13  transporting that from building.

         14                 Second, in terms of the fuel, the

         15  equipment that is now going to be up on the roof

         16  that's going to be released, it's going to be in the

         17  second, third floor, something like that, in the

         18  middle of the building; am I right, Mr. Kirby?

         19                 In terms of the air conditioning and

         20  the equipment, the issue that was brought up by the

         21  resident in terms of the fumes that will be produced

         22  from the building, correct?

         23                 MR. KIRBY: Correct.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: And in

         25  reference to the side of the building facing the
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          2  brownstone and the noise, the construction during

          3  noise time, they're going to make an effort in terms

          4  of monitoring the time of construction and the noise

          5  pollution for residents that are in the immediate

          6  area. And as a matter of fact, I see that the

          7  Chairman of the Community Board, and the secretary

          8  of the community board has also walked in, so there

          9  are some members that are going to be arriving, I

         10  hope, as we continue with this hearing.

         11                 MS. POWELL: I understand. But still,

         12  this group that is here today, is not indicative of

         13  the people who live in that community, including

         14  myself.

         15                 For example, during many of our

         16  meetings we were talking in regards to the parking

         17  situation. That issue has, to the best of my

         18  knowledge, has still not been addressed.

         19                 We have very little parking in the

         20  area, as it is, and the little bit we have is going

         21  to be taken away by the project. So, we would like

         22  to know, has there been something set up for this

         23  community? And to say you've set up a parking

         24  facility where people have to pay, you live in the

         25  community, you are in the community, you know that
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          2  the people in the community are struggling people,

          3  and the rents for parking are just as high sometimes

          4  as the rent that you pay.

          5                 So, I do think it would only be fair

          6  for those people -- I'm fortunate that I could be

          7  here, but this is not indicative of the community

          8  itself. There are hundreds of people that have

          9  issues. I'm not saying you're not trying to address

         10  the issues, but you can't address the issues if you

         11  don't hear directly from the people who live in the

         12  community.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Well, I

         14  think we have.

         15                 The series of hearings that the

         16  community board conducted, City Planning and so

         17  forth, and communication that we've had with

         18  Columbia, there's been a representation, an adequate

         19  representation of the voices of the community

         20  through these hearings.

         21                 On the issue of parking, Columbia is

         22  going to make an attempt to see if they can continue

         23  to excavate deeper, to allow for more parking. And

         24  also, they're looking at conducting a study to see,

         25  just as the hospital has done, where they're allowed
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          2  overnight parking for residents in the area, for the

          3  parking available, you're right, we're going to be

          4  losing some parking with this development, but

          5  they're going to be making an effort to see how you

          6  can continue to accommodate some additional parking,

          7  and the overnight parking also in the area.

          8                 But I do agree with you that there is

          9  a larger community concern that's not here today,

         10  but, however, at the hearing at the community board,

         11  at the City Planning, there has been adequate

         12  representation of the voices.

         13                 MS. POWELL: Also, I believe that the

         14  community planning board asked for a meeting with

         15  your office that I, myself, intended to attend and

         16  to the best of my knowledge, that meeting never took

         17  place. So there were still issues that should have

         18  been discussed directly with your office, and I have

         19  that communication with me today. So there are

         20  still, I want to, you know, expel upon you again,

         21  there are still a lot of issues that need to be

         22  addressed for this large of a project.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: I agree with

         24  you, and because there are a lot of issues that we

         25  need to follow up, Columbia has committed to
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          2  establishing an advisory committee that will be made

          3  up of residents, community boards, and

          4  representation from all the elected officials in the

          5  upper Manhattan communities, to monitor the progress

          6  of this development.

          7                 MS. POWELL: Is there some sort of

          8  communication out so residents can know about this?

          9  Because I'm hearing of it right now for the first

         10  time?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Correct. I

         12  just got in writing the commitment from Columbia, I

         13  think it was yesterday. Sent Friday, I read it

         14  yesterday, and it's going to be circulated to the

         15  community board, and also my office is going to make

         16  sure that it's circulated within our newsletter,

         17  that will go out to every resident in Northern

         18  Manhattan.

         19                 MS. POWELL: And I have one more

         20  question. In terms of the parking facility which was

         21  discussed on numerous occasions, where the residents

         22  are on 165th Street, that was supposed to be a

         23  loading dock for the trucking, I was told, however,

         24  I did not see it in writing, that since we've had

         25  grievances with that, that this loading dock would
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          2  be placed on another site; is that so, or is that

          3  not so?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: That is so.

          5  And it is in the writing, in the communication that

          6  I will be sending you.

          7                 MS. POWELL: Okay.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Columbia has

          9  committed to that.

         10                 MS. POWELL: And how will further

         11  meetings be set up for the community, who obviously

         12  are not represented here today?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Well, from

         14  this point on, we're going to be meeting with -- I'm

         15  going to be communicating with Columbia to see how

         16  we establish the Advisory Committee as soon as

         17  possible, and to ensure that an adequate

         18  representation of the community is at that advisory

         19  committee.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         21                 MS. POWELL: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON POWELL: We have two more

         23  speakers on this item that just came in. In the

         24  meantime, Council Member McMahon has an urgent event

         25  that he has to attend, and would like to vote.
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          2                 I will ask Counsel to call the roll

          3  for him.

          4                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: McMahon.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Aye on all.

          6                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: And thank you

          9  to my colleagues.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: The next two

         11  speakers on this item, Elizabeth Ritter and Zead

         12  Ramadan.

         13                 MR. RAMADAN: Good morning, ladies and

         14  gentlemen. My name is Zead Ramadan, the Chair of

         15  Community Board 12, and Elizabeth Ritter is the

         16  secretary of Community Board 12, and we've been

         17  engaged in this ULURP process since we received a

         18  notification in early December. We've held numerous

         19  meetings and numerous public sessions where we've

         20  heard the voices of our constituents, the concerns

         21  about how the development of their immediate

         22  proximity is going to take place.

         23                 The applicant is Columbia University,

         24  and it would be a fourth building, obviously I'm

         25  sure everybody knows at this time it would be the
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          2  fourth building in a project that's probably going

          3  to in all create six buildings, I think five all

          4  together with Columbia and another community-related

          5  building.

          6                 We've been in communication with

          7  Columbia University via meetings. They've attended

          8  our community board meetings, the ones that were

          9  specific to the ULURP only, they've heard the voices

         10  of the people, and we've also had written

         11  communication with Columbia University.

         12                 After a lot of discussion, we had

         13  different options in how to respond to this ULURP.

         14  There were concerns from the community that when

         15  this autobahn park project was initially improved in

         16  1990, the same City Council Land Use hearing

         17  approved of that, the community board approved of

         18  that, and we had conditions that we had placed on

         19  it.

         20                 Some conditions we still had concerns

         21  about. We don't feel that some of the conditions

         22  were successfully satisfied over the time, it's been

         23  14 years.

         24                 Those conditions replaced as part of

         25  these conditions, in this ULURP resolution not only
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          2  that, we also wanted to take into account issues

          3  that were current and that were new, and issues that

          4  were going to be coming down the line in the future.

          5                 I think in all there were

          6  approximately 25 points to our resolution and our

          7  concerns, and we approved the ULURP application to a

          8  resolution with conditions.

          9                 Again, we have negotiated

         10  successfully approximately 20 of these conditions.

         11  There are some that are still outstanding, and they

         12  happen to be some of the major ones, the ones that

         13  are really causing a lot of concern in our community

         14  board.

         15                 One is, the creation of a health

         16  sciences job training program, that we'd like

         17  Columbia University to fund through a pilot project,

         18  the Autobahn 4. Autobahn 1 in 1990 had a pilot

         19  project connected to that. This building is going to

         20  be adjoined to Autobahn 1. It will be one building

         21  all together when all is said and done. We feel that

         22  it would be very difficult to divorce these, just

         23  there's 14 dates in between them, there's one large

         24  project with five different components to them, will

         25  be adjoined, and we feel that it is not only in the
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          2  best interest of our community, because what we

          3  would like to effect with this job training program,

          4  is we would like Columbia University, through pilot

          5  funds, to supplement the pilot funds that were given

          6  to CUNY to administer, and health sciences

          7  professions training programs in the CUNY system.

          8                 We'd like them to supplement that to

          9  ensure that for years to come, people from the

         10  Washington Heights and Inwood community who pursue

         11  health sciences professions through the CUNY

         12  programs, or any -- and this is still negotiable,

         13  any other program that are health science related in

         14  the City's system, will be able to get stipends in

         15  order to make them make it realistic for them to

         16  pursue training, which usually amounts to

         17  approximately nine months with no pay. And that's

         18  very, very difficult to do is you're a working

         19  mother pursuing a better degree, a professional

         20  degree, or anyone else, to ask anyone to go to nine

         21  months or ten months or a year's worth of training,

         22  and not get paid for it, is almost saying don't do

         23  this, pursue something else which will pay you

         24  because you've got to pay your rent either way.

         25                 One thing that's very important to
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          2  state in this is that the community board represents

          3  230,000 people, the predominant population is

          4  Dominican in our community, Columbia University has

          5  done a rather good job employing people from our

          6  community. Unfortunately, the jobs that we attain at

          7  Columbia University are jobs that are support staff

          8  positions. We don't have a good number when it comes

          9  to professional positions or professional support

         10  staff position.

         11                 For example, physical therapy,

         12  occupational therapy, cath lab texts, x-ray texts,

         13  CATscan texts, those things take certification, and

         14  we would like to effect our community, and effect

         15  the biggest employer in our community, by having

         16  them put money into a project that's going to help

         17  them employ professionals from our community. We

         18  think that's going to be a very, very important

         19  thing down the line.

         20                 Not only do we represent this number

         21  of people, we represent a number of institutions,

         22  including Columbia University. We would not take

         23  this position, the community board would not take

         24  this position of we thought it was absolutely

         25  detrimental to the University. If we thought that
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          2  this would be cutting the legs from under this

          3  project, that's not the position that we would take.

          4                 We agree that the ends are the same.

          5  We agree that there's a project that we would like

          6  to pursue and continue to strengthen and help them

          7  as time goes on in order to make sure that

          8  professionals are produced from a kind of program

          9  like this.

         10                 Unfortunately in this economics

         11  climate, we prefer a guarantee that funds are going

         12  to be placed in rather than stating -- taking the

         13  word of individuals who represent an institution.

         14                 Kevin Kirby, the Associate Dean, is a

         15  great person. I respect him highly. Sandra Harris,

         16  Director of Community Affairs, I respect them

         17  highly, but -- last comment -- but they move on,

         18  just like the first president who signed the first

         19  agreement that 1990 moves on, and we need to hold

         20  the University accountable to make sure that this

         21  project continues to move on.

         22                 That's one of the issues.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         24                 I do have to make a couple of

         25  comments that some of the items, in fact maybe all
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          2  of the items that you mentioned are outside the

          3  legal scope of what we're reviewing. It is something

          4  that you can recommend and certainly that can be

          5  discussed with the University, but those are some of

          6  the things that we cannot take into account when

          7  we're reviewing the legal aspects of this

          8  application.

          9                 MS. RITTER: Yes, actually, I believe

         10  you can, and here is why: There are a number of

         11  community board members who voted for -- you take a

         12  lot into consideration when you vote to approve

         13  these matters, and one of the things I'd like to

         14  think you take into account is what was the

         15  community board's input on the project, did the

         16  community board approve it, or did the community

         17  board not approve it.

         18                 Although some of these issues, like

         19  job training, like housing are, you're right,

         20  outside of the purview of the ULURP itself. Their

         21  substance are not outside of what drove the members

         22  of the community board who approved the application

         23  to do so.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: You can certainly

         25  make that recommendation, but legally we cannot take
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          2  that into account.

          3                 It is not under the purview of what

          4  we're legally looking at.

          5                 MS. RITTER: We would have voted to

          6  not approve it.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We get into a

          8  very murky area when we start to actually put this

          9  on the record, as if we're starting to include this

         10  as part of our discussions on the item.

         11                 MS. RITTER: Reasonable.

         12                 MR. RAMADAN: The counsel, the counsel

         13  for City Planning, wrote a letter stating that -- we

         14  sent them the conditions that we had concerns with

         15  in connection with Columbia University's ULURP, and

         16  there were approximately 25 of them. Approximately

         17  eight of them, the counsel for City Planning

         18  believed were not related to this ULURP project.

         19                 So, they disqualified all of our

         20  conditions, and they did not consider any of our

         21  conditions. I just absolutely don't see it being

         22  fair in any court of the world, where you say, oh,

         23  you've put in a couple that don't make sense, so

         24  therefore, we're going to knockout everything, and

         25  City Planning did not consider any of our conditions
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          2  based on that, and they wrote, in their summation,

          3  that the City Council has every legal right to

          4  attach anything, not related to Land Use, any kind

          5  of agreement that benefits the community, the

          6  constituency in the City, in their deliberation.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: City Planning can

          8  say whatever they want, we disagree. We do have a

          9  legal obligation here.

         10                 Council Member Martinez.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Yes, first

         12  of all, City Planning did make reference to the fact

         13  that ULRUPs are not conditioned, as you mentioned,

         14  by law. Approval of ULURP are not conditioned,

         15  either they're approved or disapproved, that's just

         16  the bottom line. Conditions for ULURP are dealt at

         17  borough boards, where I think the Borough President

         18  made an approval with recommendations, but not

         19  conditioning the approval or disapproval of the

         20  ULURP.

         21                 That is why I have been engaged in

         22  discussion with the University. Not as part of the

         23  approval or disapproval of the ULURP, but to

         24  continue strengthening the commitment made in the

         25  past by Columbia, and to address some of the issues
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          2  that came up from the Board, from the hearing that

          3  the Board had and from communications that you had.

          4                 Unfortunately, the Board did conduct

          5  several meetings with the University without my

          6  office knowing about it; however, that's the role

          7  that the Board plays in terms of getting the

          8  conditions and addressing the issues that were made

          9  in the past a new commitment.

         10                 I would inform you that the

         11  University has made a commitment to look for the

         12  funding of a total of $200,000 more to the $600,000

         13  that we already have in CUNY for the training

         14  program that you mentioned. And I already contacted

         15  the University, CUNY, that for some reason or

         16  another, the community and everybody is involved in

         17  looking for these dollars and making these dollars

         18  accessible to the community, however, no one was

         19  communicating with the Vice Chancellor of Student

         20  Affairs, Otis Hill, who did not know about this.

         21                 Ms. Hill is not aware of the $600,000

         22  that is in CUNY. He is going to be engaged in

         23  ensuring that the University makes these fundings

         24  available and that those campuses within CUNY, where

         25  the large majority of students from Northern
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          2  Manhattan community attend, are aware of the

          3  fundings that are available.

          4                 I would say that this is going now to

          5  the Borough Board. At the Borough Board is the

          6  proper forum to continue to strengthen and

          7  continuing to make Columbia stick to their

          8  commitment, but as the Chairman mentioned, the

          9  Council does not have the authority to approve or

         10  disapprove a ULURP based on conditions.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I would also,

         12  we're going to have to really cut this off, because

         13  I think we're getting into inappropriate areas.

         14                 The money we're talking about relates

         15  to Autobahn 1. This is not a discussion about

         16  Autobahn 1. It's a discussion about the application

         17  for Autobahn 4.

         18                 MR. RAMADAN: And we'd like to do the

         19  same that we did for Autobahn 1 for Autobahn 4.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We are.

         21                 MR. RAMADAN: We're just putting a

         22  historical perspective on it, that's all.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: This is something

         24  that you should continue discussions with the

         25  Council member, with Columbia. It is outside the
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          2  scope of what this Committee is reviewing.

          3                 MS. RITTER: I have brief prepared

          4  testimony, may I give it?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Is it other than

          6  what we've been talking about?

          7                 Does it relate directly to the

          8  application that's being considered? If not, I'm

          9  going to rule it out of order. You've already had

         10  your, well beyond your allotted time.

         11                 MS. RITTER: That was his time. And I

         12  believe it is. You can stop me if it's not.

         13                 I would like to share a letter that I

         14  have written to our Councilman two weeks ago in

         15  response to a letter that he had written to the

         16  Board, dated March 23rd, which had been copied to

         17  the rest of the Board.

         18                 Frankly, Miguel, your letter

         19  surprised me. Community boards may reject or support

         20  the proposals, as part of the ULURP. As you know,

         21  when Community Board 12 approved Columbia

         22  University's Autobahn 4 ULURP, we did so

         23  conditionally. The presence of these conditions made

         24  the difference for many of us as to whether or not

         25  we support the ULURP application at all.
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          2                 I would add that had we not been able

          3  to support it conditionally, the Board would not

          4  actually have approved it.

          5                 So, apart from the issue of whether

          6  conditions are appropriate, I need for you to know

          7  that had those conditions not been attached, you

          8  would be reviewing a ULURP that did not enjoy the

          9  support of the community board.

         10                 So, I just need to state that

         11  unequivocally for the record.

         12                 Of course, you have an important role

         13  in this process, as well. We look to all of our

         14  elected officials in general and to you in

         15  particular, a member of the Land Use Committee, to

         16  advocate on behalf of the community with the

         17  University. The reservations the Board raised were

         18  born of extensive community input. Ideally, these

         19  concerns would be heated by the officials, that the

         20  community elects to represent its interests, ideally

         21  you would adopt the community's reservations as your

         22  own and give the community's concerns the imprimatur

         23  of legislative authority.

         24                 Miguel, I like to think that elected

         25  officials, Board members and concerned community
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          2  residents work together, and do not argue over

          3  borders of involvement. For you to suggest that

          4  activism moves in a quantized fashion from milieu to

          5  the next, that we do not work together along a

          6  continuum, that there are spheres of influence which

          7  do not overlap, is shocking. This is not a relay

          8  race where each participant passes the baton to the

          9  next. This is supposed to be a team effort with

         10  simultaneous involvement of multiple players, or

         11  perhaps I misunderstood, perhaps you did not

         12  actually mean to suggest the community board but out

         13  of the process now that the City Council is

         14  involved. I am glad to hear that there are meetings

         15  scheduled between the University, the community

         16  board and you as Councilman, I hope that Councilman

         17  Jackson also will be invited. I'd like to correct

         18  the record that your office, perhaps not you

         19  personally, but people who work for you in your

         20  office were notified of every meeting the Board ever

         21  had.

         22                 It is definitely regrettable that you

         23  were not able to attend because perhaps you did not

         24  get those messages from your staff, and you may want

         25  to look into that. That's a management decision I

                                                            45

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  leave to you. But there has to be real participation

          3  between the elected Councilmen with all parts of the

          4  community, including the community board.

          5                 We had, you know, not just Dale

          6  Powers, but 75 other really motivated residents

          7  weighing in on these issues, and you didn't attend

          8  any of those meetings. So, we really need to go

          9  forward in a spirit of cooperation and participation

         10  where everybody is showing up to the same meetings.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 MR. RAMADAN: Mr. Chairman, I just

         13  have -- it's in connection to this ULURP, it's a

         14  particular point.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. Thank

         16  you.

         17                 If there is nobody else signed up to

         18  speak on this item, I will close the public hearing

         19  on it, and we move on to the last item.

         20                 Council Member Vann also has to

         21  leave. I will ask Counsel to call the roll for his

         22  vote.

         23                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Vann.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Aye.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: The last item on
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          2  the agenda is Land Use Number 133. C030289 ZMK.

          3  Application by 99 Gold Street Associates, for an

          4  amendment of the zoning map changing from an M1-2

          5  district, to an R6A district. Property bounded by

          6  Front Street and other streets.

          7                 This item was laid over from our

          8  meeting on April 19th, and Howard Goldman is here to

          9  represent the applicant.

         10                 MR. GOLDMAN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         11                 Howard Goldman representing the

         12  applicant.

         13                 This is a follow-up to a zoning

         14  change that went into effect in 1998, in the Vinegar

         15  Hill Section of Brooklyn.

         16                 It followed, the zoning followed the

         17  creation of the Vinegar Hill Historic District. The

         18  original zoning was an eight-block application,

         19  changing from M1 to R6. During the ULURP process a

         20  couple of property owners came forward and asked

         21  that their sites be taken out of the rezoning

         22  because of continuing commercial or manufacturing

         23  operations. This site was, in fact, an active toy

         24  import manufacturing operation.

         25                 This site was taken out of the
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          2  rezoning, it remained in the M1 District, and then

          3  the owner promptly closed down his business a year

          4  or two letter and the site was acquired by my

          5  clients who now ask that it be put back into the

          6  residential zoning proposal that was effectuated in

          7  1998.

          8                 This would allow the existing

          9  five-story building to be converted to approximately

         10  condominium units.

         11                 And that is the application that's

         12  before you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: The community

         14  board has approved it, correct? As well as the

         15  Borough President?

         16                 MR. GOLDMAN: The community board has

         17  approved it, and the Borough President has

         18  recommended approval.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         20  Quinn.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I just wanted

         22  to ask the Chair what the Council member whose

         23  district it's in, what their position is?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Latitia James,

         25  and she approves it.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We've also been

          4  joined in the meantime, by the way, by Council

          5  Member Palma and Council Member Jackson.

          6                 Any other questions from Committee

          7  members? And other Council members?

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 MR. GOLDMAN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: If there is

         11  nobody else signed up to speak on this item, I will

         12  close the public hearing on that item.

         13                 The last item that was on the agenda,

         14  Land Use Item Number 137, 20045443 TCM, which is

         15  actually a sidewalk cafe, application by Gateway

         16  Productions, Council Member Perkins has asked that

         17  we lay that over, which we will do.

         18                 The Chair will ask Counsel to call

         19  the roll on these items. The Chair recommends

         20  approval of all three items.

         21                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Avella.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Aye.

         23                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Quinn.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Aye.

         25                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Baez.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Aye.

          3                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Katz.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: To explain my

          5  vote, Mr. Chair?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Absolutely.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I'm voting aye

          8  on all. I'm actually a little bit distressed that

          9  the community boards that were in here talking about

         10  the Council Member who apparently did not want any

         11  further discussions, apparently, with the community

         12  board, spoke and left, and I think that whoever is

         13  here maybe from the Board, if you can relay that. I

         14  think that since the whole discussion of the

         15  testimony was about Council Member Martinez, I would

         16  think that the community board would have stayed in

         17  order to hear actually what the vote was, number

         18  one.

         19                 Number two, just for the record, and

         20  as an active member of this Subcommittee, Mr. Chair,

         21  of Land Use, I'd like to make it clear to the

         22  community boards that are here, community boards

         23  take a very intricate part, and the very intricate

         24  discussion part of the applications that come before

         25  us. Were the chairs of the Committee that were here
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          2  weren't late, they would have heard me question the

          3  developers regarding the community boards and why

          4  each community board had a different opinion on this

          5  application. That disturbed me. And that shows just

          6  how important this Committee believes and the

          7  Council members that represent the area, believe the

          8  community boards take in the process. They are

          9  intricate parts of this process. We respect them

         10  immensely.

         11                 But once the community board votes,

         12  the Council Member must take action to make sure

         13  that what the community board wanted and what the

         14  community board's conditions were, are actually

         15  acted upon by the developers and by the applicants

         16  in this case.

         17                 And, so, I would just like to make

         18  that clear for the record. I think it's great

         19  Council Member Martinez is working with the Board

         20  and has kept them as part of the discussions. I

         21  think that is a very important part of being a

         22  Council member. But their vote is also probably the

         23  most important part, and I just wanted to clear that

         24  up for the record.

         25                 I vote aye.
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          2                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: By a vote of

          3  six in the affirmative, none in the negative, with

          4  no abstentions, the aforementioned items are

          5  approved and referred to the full committee.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: That closes this

          7  meeting of the Subcommittee on Zoning and

          8  Franchises. Thank you, everybody.

          9                 (Hearing concluded at 10:35 a.m.)
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          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 27th day of April 2004.
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